## **Minutes**

## PROPERTY, HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT SELECT COMMITTEE



11 July 2023

## Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre

	Committee Members Present: Councillors Keith Burrows (Chairman) Steve Tuckwell (Vice-Chairman) Alan Chapman Elizabeth Garelick Kamal Preet Kaur Peter Money (Opposition Lead) LBH Officers Present: Michael Naughton, Head of Capital Programme Steve Clarke, Democratic Services Officer
13.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND TO REPORT THE PRESENCE OF ANY SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Agenda Item 1)
	There were no apologies for absence although it was noted that Councillor Davies was not present.
14.	<b>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING</b> (Agenda Item 2)
	There were no declarations of interest made.
15.	TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda Item 3)
	RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting dated 06 June 2023 be agreed as a correct record.
16.	TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED AS PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 4)
	It was confirmed that all items on the agenda were marked as Part 1 and would therefore be heard in public.
17.	PLATINUM JUBILEE LEISURE CENTRE, WEST DRAYTON – PROJECT UPDATE (Agenda Item 5)
	Michael Naughton, Head of Capital Programme, was present for this item and summarised the Platinum Jubilee Leisure Centre project for the Committee, giving an update on the progress made through the construction phase of the project. It was highlighted that the project had been years in the making with an initial feasibility study showing that there was a need for swimming space in the West Drayton area. The specific site on Rowhleys Place had been originally chosen because it had space for a

	25 metre, eight lane swimming pool with an ancillary leisure pool and slide. The Committee heard how the project had been designed to be commercially viable, to cover its costs and to deliver funds back to the Council whilst improving the sports and leisure offer in the Borough. The project was due to come online in summer 2024 and officer noted that they were happy with the progress being made highlighting that, despite the difficult economic environment, the project remained on-time and on budget.
	On climate matters and the Council's move to net zero carbon emissions, it was highlighted that the production of the concrete and steel was always going to be a very carbon intensive process, however the project was expected to achieve its net zero carbon emissions target by the mid-2040s, this included the carbon generated during construction of the leisure centre; the project would eventually be carbon negative. Members commented that the development would be a fantastic addition to the Borough and were specifically encouraged by the eventual carbon negative nature of the scheme. Officers noted that air quality at the site was being extensively monitored during the construction phase and that the green nature of the development had been built into the design.
	The Committee sought to explore the local employment opportunities facilitated by the new leisure centre development. Officers highlighted that, in addition to the employment opportunities brought about by the final development, it had been a part of the construction contractor's requirements to employ locally and that there had been a number of apprenticeship roles arising from the project.
	On parking matters, it was confirmed that once finished, the site would have 140 available car parking spaces and one coach drop off/pick up point; it was not expected that coaches would remain on site. It was highlighted that the parking provision was lower than at the larger Hillingdon Sports and Leisure Centre but more than was provided at the Botwell Leisure Centre.
	Members sought assurance that the £37M budget for the project was inclusive of all design and build phases and that it had taken account of inflationary pressures. Officers noted that, of the £37M, £32.9M came under a fixed cost contract with the contractor, meaning that there would be no extra cost to the Council due to inflationary pressures unless the requirement of the build was legally changed. The remaining £4.1M was inclusive of design, procurement, and all other costs associated with the project.
	The Committee thanked officers for their work on this project highlighting that it would become a valuable community asset for Hillingdon. The Committee discussed the possibility of conducting a site visit to the project construction phase, to which officers commented that a site visit would be most appropriate in early 2024 when the framework of the building was more established and there would be more for the Committee to see in way of a semi-finished development.
	RESOLVED: That the Property, Highways and Transport Select Committee noted the contents of the report.
18.	SELECT COMMITTEE REVIEW: TOPIC SELECTION (Agenda Item 6)
	The Chairman introduced the item noting that the Committee would soon be embarking on its next major scrutiny review and Members were encouraged to shortlist a number of potential review topics that could be explored and scoped out further by officers.

Final selection of a review topic would be brought to the Select Committee's following meeting.

The Committee went on to discuss a number of prospective review topics. Members highlighted an interest in the Council's built assets, specifically the reconfiguration of the Civic Centre in Uxbridge, as a cross cutting scrutiny topic that fell within the Select Committee's remit. It was noted that a large planned project regarding this was underway and that the Committee's position could be more appropriate in monitoring the project rather than conducting a review of the ongoing development. It was agreed that the Committee could receive an information item on this and possibly hold a site visit to see the reconfigurations first hand. The Committee also considered a prospective review looking at decarbonisation of the Council's buildings as the Council owned a number of large buildings such as the Civic Centre and Hillingdon Sports and Leisure Centre, and the Committee were interested in exploring the moves being made to become a carbon neutral council.

The Committee also sought to explore the possibility of reviewing housing maintenance activities and refurbishment of the Council's housing stock, with the possibility of drawing focus towards how the Council responds to maintenance needs mid-tenancy rather than when properties were voided and matters such a rainwater management in housing blocks.

Another prospective review topic discussed by Members was a possible review into the Council's approach to road safety, it was noted that this was an area which had not been subject to any form of in-depth scrutiny from Councillors for some time. The Committee highlighted their specific interest in how road safety was being managed within the vicinity of the Borough's schools and the impact on school children.

A further possible review topic suggested by members was bus routes and transportation, it was noted that there had been a recent impact on residents due to changes in bus routes and scheduling which had left some areas underserved. The Committee were also minded to explore the Council's fleet strategy with an eye to ensuring the progress made within this area of work aligned with the Council's zero carbon commitments.

The Committee discussed the possibility of conducting several concurrent small to midscale scrutiny reviews rather than one major review throughout the municipal year. Officers confirmed that they would explore this approach for feasibility and would report back to the Committee at the following meeting. It was also confirmed that the Committee had shortlisted a number of review topics and that these would be scoped further with the relevant teams, with the Committee's formal decision on a review topic, or topics, coming at the next meeting.

RESOLVED: That the Property, Highways and Transport Select Committee developed a shortlist of potential scrutiny review topic ideas for officers to scope further and report back to the Committee on feasibility.

## 19. **CABINET FORWARD PLAN** (Agenda Item 7)

The Chairman introduced the Cabinet Forward Plan discussing the upcoming items which would fall under the scrutiny remit of the Committee.

**RESOLVED:** That the Property, Highways and Transport Select Committee noted the Cabinet Forward Plan.

20.	WORK PROGRAMME (Agenda Item 8)
	The Chairman introduced the Select Committee's work programme asking for any suggestions from the Committee on potential new items to be added. The Committee discussed the Building Safety Strategy and building safety generally, it was noted that the Committee received an item on this at their April 2023 meeting but that the Committee were minded to have the item come back on a regular basis as an annual report due to the significance of the work area. This was agreed.
	It was also noted that the Committee would be receiving at their next meeting the draft report from their major scrutiny review into highways resurfacing. This would be finalised and agreed at the meeting and taken forward to Cabinet thereafter.
	RESOLVED: That the Property, Highways and Transport Select Committee noted the Committee Work Programme and agreed any amendments.
	The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 7.45 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Democratic Services at <u>democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk</u>. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.